Goulburn Mulwaree Council

Memo

To: JRPP

CC: Richard Davies,

From: Dianne James

Date: 4 April 2012

Subject: Sub-Acute Rehabilitation Unit, Goulburn Base Hospital, 130 Goldsmith St.
File: 174/1112/DA

Following Council's preparation of draft conditions of consent and SCA concurrence the applicant
requested a review of the SCA conditions based on revised stormwater assessment and MUSIC
modelling (Copy of memo dated 15/2/2012 and revised stormwater assessment attached).

Also attached is the draft Determination and an email extract of the applicants consent to the SCA’s revised
conditions and an email extract of the applicants consent to revised condition 31.

Council has agreed to delete original draft conditions relating to s94A developer contributions and
consolidation of lots.

There is no change to the original assessment report required.

ards
A
/J’i d Orvace

ianne James
Senior Town Planner

‘Couricil's Vision: To'Serve the Comimunity



Dianne James

From: Alex Cooney [Alex.Cocney@hinfra.health.nsw.gov.au]

Sent: Thursday, 5 Aprit 2012 11:09 AM

To: Dianne James

Subject: RE.; Goulburn Sub Acute Hospital Project DA Approval [Scanned][Spam score:8%)] [Spam

score; 9%)]

Dianne,

Reviewed and accepted as true and accurate. The highlighted plans as indicated on your draft are the latest
revisions. Please advise as to progress of the approval by the end of next week.

Have a great long weekend.
Kind regards
Alex Cooney | Project Director | Health Infrastructure

Level 8, 77 Pacific Highway, North Sydney, NSW 2080/ Direct Dial: 9978 5462 | Fax: 8904 1377 | Mobile: 0413 685 543
| email: alex.cooney@hinfra.health.nsw.gov.au | web address http://www.hinfra.health.nsw.gov.au

Disclaimer; This message is intended for the addressee named and may contain confidential information. If you are not
the intended recipient, please delete it and nctify the sender. Views expressed in this message are those of the
individual sender, and are not necessarily the views of Heaith infrastructure, This email has been scanned by the
Messagelabs Email Security System. Emails and attachments are regularly monitored to ensure compiiance with NSW

Health's Electronic Messaging Policy.

v Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

From: Dianne James [mailte:Dianne.James@goulburn.nsw.gov.au]

Sent: Wednesday, 4 April 2012 12:00 PM

To: Alex Cooney

Subject: RE: Goulburn Sub Acute Hospital Project DA Approval [Scanned}{Spam score:8%]

Hi Alex

t have drafted the revised consent and attached a copy for your final review prior to sending through to the JRPP.

Regards

Dianne James
Dianne James

Senior Town Planner
Goulburn Mulwaree Councit
ph: 48234 454

fax: 4822 7999

email; dianne.james@goulburn.nsw.gov.au



From: Alex Cooney [mailto:Alex.Cooney@hinfra.health.nsw.gov.au]

Sent: Friday, 30 March 2012 1:18 PM

To: Dianne James; Richard Davies

Cc: Peter Caldwell; Brian Geddes; Leone Mcentee

Subject: Goulburn Sub Acute Hospital Project DA Approval [Scannedi[Spam score:8%)]

Dianne,

Could you please inform Health Infrastructure as to the status of the DA Approval for the Goulhurn Sub Acute
Hospital Project? The project is programmed to commence construction on the 23" April 2012. As the project
aporoaches construction commencement the DA approval has been placed as the number one risk potentially

effecting completion by the agreed date setl in line with state and federal government cammitments for 201.3.

[ understand you have been liaising with 8rian Geddes on our team, hut would like to inform you that he will be
stepping away from the project at the end of next week, Please give me call on Monday morning to discuss.

Kind regards

Alex Cooney | Project Director | Health Infrastructure
Level 8, 77 Pacific Highway, North Sydney, NSW 2060| Direct Dial: 8978 5462 | Fax: 8904 1377 | Mobile: 0413 685 543

| email: alex.cooney@hinfra.health.nsw.gov.au | web address hitp:/fiwww hinfra.health.nsw.gov.au

Disclaimer: This message is intended for the addressee named and may contain confidential information. If you are not
the intended recipient, please delete it and notify the sender. Views expressed in this message are those of the
individual sender, and are not necessarily the views of Health Infrastructure. This email has heen scanned by the
Messagel.abs Email Security System. Emails and attachments are reguiarly monitored to ensure compliance with NSW

Health's Eiectronic Messaging Policy.

<& Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

From: Brian Geddes [mailto:B.Geddes@auroraprojects.com.au]
Sent: Thursday, 29 March 2012 4:20 PM

To: Alex Cooney; Peter Caldwell

Subject: RE: Goulburn DA Approval

The contact at Goulburn Mulwaree Council is Dianne James, 4823 4409,
As requested we enclose the February’12 PM report.

Brian Geddes

Executive Project Manager

From: Aiex Cooney [mailto:Alex.Cooney@hinfra.health.nsw.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 29 March 2012 3:07 PM

To: Brian Geddes

Cc: Peter Caldwell

Subject: Goulburn DA Approval

Brian,
Any status on the DA approval. Starting to get concerned as we draw near to the commencement of construction.
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Who is the contact you are liaising with to push the approval through local council???

Kind regards

Alex Cooney | Project Director | Health infrastructure
Level 8, 77 Pacific Highway, North Sydney, NSW 2060 | Direct Dial: 9978 5462 | Fax: 8904 1377 | Mobile: 0413 685
543 | email: glex.cooney@hinfra.health.nsw.gov.au | web address http://www.hinfra.health.nsw.gov.au

Disclaimer: This message is intended for the addressee named and may contain confidential information. If you are
not the intended recipient, please delete it and notify the sender. Views expressed in this message are those of the
individual sender, and are not necessarily the views of Health Infrastructure.This email has been scanned by the
Messagelabs Email Security System. Emails and attachments are regufarly monitored to ensure compliance

with NSW Health's Electronic Messaging Policy.

P Please cansider the environment before printing this e-mail.

This message is intended for the addressee named and may contain
confidential information.

If you are not the intended recipient, please delete it and notify the
sender,

Views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender, and
are not necessarily the views of NSW Health or any of its entitieg.

Click here to report this email as spam.

This message has been scanned for malware by Websense. www. websense.com

This message is intended for the addressee named and may contain
confidential information.

If you are not the intended recipient, please delete it and notify the
sender.

Views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender, and
are not necessarily the views of NSW Health or any of its entities.
Think of the environment, please don't print this e-mail unless you really need to. This message may contain
confidential information. If you think it has been sent to you by mistake, please delete all copies and
attachments and advise the sender. Please note that Council has a maximum email size of SMB.
This message is intended for the addressee named and may contain
confidential infecrmation,

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
Sent: Wednesday, 14 March 2012 10:04 AM

To: Dianne James
Subject: RE: SCA Amended Advice Your Ref DA/0174/1112 Our Ref 11314 [Scanned]{Spam score:8%]

Thanks for the advice,
We confirm that the conditions are acceptable and can be included in the final draft conditions of consent for

sttbmission to the JRPP

Brian Geddes

T N P
PIXOOUUYE FIGadt i

From: Dianne James [mailto:Dianne. James@goulburn.nsw.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 14 March 2012 9:48 AM
To: Brian Geddes

Cc: suzie.jattan@planning.nsw.gov.au
Subject: FW: SCA Amended Advice Your Ref DA/0174/1112 Our Ref 11314 [Scanned]{Spam score:8%]

Good Morning Brian
Re: DA/GI74/1112 & 130 Goldsmith Street, Goulburn

Please find attached SCA revised concurrence. Would you please review the conditions and provide a response as to
whether you agree to them or not. [ will then revise the draft consent provide you a copy for final agreement and then
forward the revised information 1o the JRPP for electronic assessment.

If you have any questions please feel firee o contact me
Regards

Dianne James

Dianne James

Senior Town Planner

Goulburn Mulwaree Council

ph: 48234 454

fax: 4822 7999

email: dianne james@gouiburn,nsw,.gov.au

From: Jacqueline Brewster [mailto:Jacqueline. Brewsler@sca.nsw.gov.au)

Sent: Wednesday, 14 March 2012 §:10 AM

To: Dianne James; b.geddesgauroraprojects.com.au

Ce: council

Subject; SCA Amended Advice Your Rel DA/GI74/1112 Qur Ref 11314 [Scanned}{ Spam score:8%]

Attention: Dianne James

Please {find attached a pdf and word version of the Sydney Catchment Authority’s signed amended concurrence advice
dated 13/03/12.

The word version of advice is solely provided to facititate Council incorporating SCA’s conditions of concurrence inte
any consent for the development.

The attached word document is not to be on-forwarded outside of Council.

Regards Jackie

Jacquetine Brewster 1 Regutatory Officer
Sydney Catchment Authority 1 PO Box 323 Penrith 2750

[
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From: LVLSCANONOZ [mailto:iRADVCS045(@sca.nsw.gov.an
Sent: Wednesday, 14 March 2012 7:38 AM

To: Jacqueline Brewster

Subject: Attached Image






3. The irrigation area for rainwater reuse shall be a minimum 550 square metres of garden
beds and grassed area in the vicinity of the new facility as shown in Figure 4 in the
Effect on Water Quality report by AECOM Australia Pty Ltd (Revision B; dated 13
February 2012).

4. The rainwater irrigation system shall be automatic and shall be by subsuiface means.

5. A Gross Poliutant Trap (Humegard HG14A or SCA approved equivalent) shall be
installed at the existing drainage pit located at the south-east corner of the site to
capture and treat stormwater runoff from the southern part of the site.

6. An Operational Environmental Management Plan (OEMP) detailing the responsibilities
for the inspection, monitoring and maintenance of the stormwater management
structures associated with this development, including gutters, rainwater tanks, pits
pipes, and gross pollutant trap, and any other stormwater structures and drainage shall
be developed prior to occupation of the building.

7. Any variation to stormwater management measures shall be agreed to by the Sydney
Catchment Authority.

Reason for Conditions 2 to 7 - To ensure stormwater runoff from the development is
appropriately designed, maintained and managed to ensure an overall and sustainable
neutral or beneficial impact on water quality over the longer term.

8. An Erosion & Sediment Control Plan shall be prepared for all works required as part of
the development by a person with knowledge and experience in the preparation of such
plans. The Plan shall meet the requirements outlined in Chapter 2 of NSW Landcom's
Soils and Construction: Managing Urban Stormwater (2004) manual - the “Blue Book”
and shall be to the satisfaction of Coungil.

9. Effective erosion and sediment controls shall be installed prior to any construction or
demolition activity, and shall prevent sediment or polluted water leaving the site or
entering any stormwater drains. The controls shall be regularly maintained and
retained until works have been completed and groundcover established or the ground
surface stabilised.

Reason for Conditions 8 & 9 — To manage adverse environmental and water quality
impacts during the construction phase of the development so as to minimise the risk of
erosion, sedimentation and pollution within or from the site during this phase.

Under Clause 11 of the SEPP, Council must provide the SCA with a copy of its
determination of the application within 10 days after the determination is made.

If you wish to discuss this matter further please contact Dr Bob Banens on 4724 2458 or
Jim Caddey on 4824 3401.

Yours sincerely

; A
(-\\ [ g)\.k.f Y‘\j{]\ N m
MALCOLM HUGHES
Manadger Planning and Assessments

\Z‘;\?‘;\\ 1,

Cc.  Brian Geddes (bgeddes @auroraprojects.com.au)
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Dianne James

From: Brian Geddes [B.Geddes@auroraprojects.com.au]
Sent: Friday, 2 March 2012 10:33 AM

To: Dianne James

Subject: RE: [Scanned] [Spam score: 11%)]

We accept the revised condition. We will be having the BCA consultant provide certification on completion
so we have aiready got it covered.

Brian Geddes

LA O PO W

From: Dianne James [mailto:Dianne.James@gouiburn, nsw.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 29 February 2012 4:02 PM

To: Brian Geddes

Cc: Richard Davies

Subject: FW: [Scanned]

Hi Brian
Would you accept the proposed change below for condition 31 of the draft determination?

Regards

Dianne James

Dianne fames

Senior Town Planner

Goulburn Mulwaree Council

ph: 48234 454

fax: 4822 7999

email: dianne james@goulburn.nsw.gov.au

From: Glenn Walker

Sent: Wednesday, 29 February 2012 3:57 PM
To: Dianne James

Subject: [Scanned]

Pursuant to Clause 94 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, it will be necessary to fire
upgrade/protect the existing buildings in accordance with Appendix G (Statement of Environmental Effects) as
described as Preliminary BCA Assessment Report prepared by Blackett Maguire + Goldsmith dated 12 October 2011.
Any variation to this report will require the written approval of Council.

CHANGE TO

Pursuant to Clause 94 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, it will be necessary to fire
upgrade/protect the existing buildings in accordance with Appendix G (Statement of Environmental Effects) as
described as Preliminary BCA Assessment Report prepared by Blackett Maguire + Goldsmith dated 12 October 2011.
Any variation to this report and any Alternative Solution will require authorisation by a C10 Accredited Certifier.
Variations to the BCA Assessment Report and any Alternative Solution are to be provided to Council for their

records.



Regards,
Glenn Walker
Snr Environmental Health & Building Surveyor

Goulburn Mulwaree Council
Locked Bag 22
GOULBURN NSW 2580

Phone: (02} 4823 4444

Fax: (02) 4822 7999

Email: glenn.walker@goulburn.nsw.gov.au
Website: www.goulburn.nsw.gov.au

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

This message has been scanned for malware by Websense. www, websense.com
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A.68 LmITATIONS & EXCLUSIONS
The limitations and exclusions of this report are as follows:

»  The following assessment is based upon a review of the architectural documentation.
= The Report does not address matters in relation to the following:
i. lLocal Government Act and Regulations.
ii. Occupational Health and Safety Act and Regulations,
fii. WorkCover Authority requirements.
iv. Disability Discrimination Act.
v. Water, drainage, gas, telecommunications and electricity supply authority
requirements.

= Biackett Maguire + Goldsmith Pty Ltd do not guarantee acceptance of this report by
Locat Council, NSW Fire Brigades or other approval authorities.

= No part of this document may be reproduced in any form or by any means without
written permission from Blackett Maguire + Goldsmith Pty Ltd. This report is based
solely on client instructions, and therefore shouid not be used by any third party without
prior knowledge of such instructions.

A.7 TERMINOLOGY

Building Code of Australia - Document published on behalf of the Australian Building Codes
Board. The BCA is a uniform set of technical provisions for the design and construction
of buildings and other structures throughout Australia and is adopted in NSW under the
provisions of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act & Reguiation.

Fire Resistance Level (FRL)} - means the grading periocds in minutes for the following criteria-

(a) structural adequacy; and
(b} integrity; and
(c) insulation,
and expressed in that order.
Fire Source Feature (FSF) - the far boundary of a road adjoining the allotment; or a side or

rear boundary of the allotrment; or an external wall of ancther building on the allotment
which is not a Class 10 building.

Health-care building - a building whose occupants or patients undergoing medical treatment
generally need physical assistance to evacuate the building during an emergency and
includes—

(a) a public or private hospital; or

(b) a nursing home or similar facility for sick or disabled persons needing fuli-time
care; or

(c) a clinic, day surgery or procedure unit where the effects of the predominant
treatment administered involve patients becoming non-ambulatory and requiring
supervised medical care on the premises for some time after the treatment.

Open space - means a space on the allotment, or a roof or other part of the building suitably
protected from fire, open to the sky and connected directly with a public road.

Performance Requirements of the BCA - A Building Solution will comply with the BCA if it

satisfies the Performance Reguirements. A Performance requirement states the level of
performance that a Building Solution must meet,

FAProjects\201i\110349 - Goulburn HospHal Rehabllitation RedevelopmentBCA Report\BCA Assessment Report R4.doc Pago 5 of 31



A

Compliance with the Performance Requirements can only be achieved by-
(a) complying with the Deemed-to-Satisfy Provisions; or
{b) formulating an Alternative Solution which-
(i) complies with the Performance Requirements; or
(i) is shown to be at least equivalent to the Deemed-to-Satisfy Provisions; or
(c) a combination of (a) and (b).
Patient care area - means a part of a health-care building normally used for the treatment,

care, accommodation, recreation, dining and hoiding of patients including a ward area
and treatment area

Rise in storeys - means the greatest number of storeys calculated in accordance with BCA
.2,

Sole occupancy unit - means a room or other part of a building for occupation by one or
joint owner, lessee, tenant, or other occupier to the exclusion of any other owner,
lessee, tenant, or other occupier and includes a dwelling,

Treatment area - means an area within a patient care area such as an operating theatre and
rooms used for recovery, minor procedures, resuscitation, intensive care and coronary
care from which a patiernt may not be readily moved.

Ward area - means that part of a patient care area for resident patients and may contain
areas for accormmodation, sleeping, associated living and nursing facilities.

FAProjects\2011\10349 - Goulburn Hospital Rehabliitation Redevelopment8CA Report\BCA Assessment Report R4.doc Page 6 of 31
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2

BCA SECTION C - FIRE RESISTANCE

Clause C1.10 - Fire Hazard Properties

The fire hazard properties of all new building materials and assemblies as well as all new
floor materials, floor coverings, wall and ceiling lining materials used in the development
must comply with the requirements of Specification C1.10 of the BCA. Details indicating
compliance will need to be provided prior to the completion of works.

2. Clause C2.2 ~ General Floor Area and Volume Limitations

The proposed new building is compliant with maximum fire compartment sizes,

3. Clause C2.5 - Class 9a buildings

The fire and smoke compartments will need to comply with the folowing requirements:

Treatment areas are divided into smoke compartments not more than 1,000n7,
Architectural plans indicate compliance.

Ward areas being separated into 500m® smoke compartments. In addition, as the
proposed new bullding exceeds 1000m® a smoke wall which also achieves an FRL of
80/60/60 must be provided to limit the fire compartment size. Architectural plans indicate
compliance,

Smoke separation is to be as per BCA specifications C2.5 and C3.4.

Patient care areas also need to be fire compartmented into 2000m” fire compartments
with fire walis having an FRL. of 120/120A120, however we note the overall building area
(being the new building only due to separation from the existing building) is less than
2,000m’ therefore the above requirements apply.

#t is understocd that smoke / fire compartments will be installed within the following
locations:

FAProjects\2011\110349 - Goutburn Hospital Rehabilitation Redevelopmont\BCA ReportBCA Assessment Report R4.doc Page 8 of 31


















10.Specification C1.1 - Fire Resisting Construction

Type B Construction

)

The proposed building elements are required to comply with the requirements detailed
under Specification C1.1 for Type B Construction for Cass 5 & 9a use - refer to the below

Table:~

BUILDING ELEMENT Class 5 & 9a
EXTERNAL WALL (including any coiumn and other building
element incorporated therein) or other external building element,
where the distance from any fire-source feature to which it is
exposed is -
For loadbearing walls:
fess than 1.5m 12011201120
1.8m to less than 3m 120/90/60
3m to less than 9m 120/30/30
9m to less than 18m 120/30/-
18m or more ~/-/-
For non « loadbearing walls:
less than 1.5m -/120/120
1.5m to less than 3m -/90/60
3m or more /-
EXTERNAL COLUNMN not incorporated in an external wall,
where the distance from any fire source feature to which # is
exposed is ~
Less than 3m 120/-/-
3m or more -/-1-
COMMON WALLS & FIRE WALLS- 1204120420
INTERNAL WALLS
Fire resisting lift and stair shafts (loadbearing) - 1201204120
Fire resisting stair shafts (hon-loadbearing) - -120/120
Bounding public corridors, public lobbles and the like -
Loadbearing 120/-/-
Non Loadbeating ot
Between or bounding sole-occupancy units -
Loadbearing 120/-/-

FAProjects\2011\110349 - Goulburn Hospital Rebabifitation Redevefopmeni\BCA RoportiBCA Assessment Report Rd.doc Fage 14 of 31
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Non Loadbearing -/-/-

OTHER LOADBEARING INTERNAL WALLS & COLUMNS: 120/-/-

ROOFS -/~
BCA SEcTicN D ~ AcCE EGRE

11. Clause D1.3 - Fire Isolated Stairways

The stairway located on the southern side of the proposed new extension is required to
be fire isolated due to the fact that the building contains two storeys and inciudes patient
care areas.

in this regard we note that the Fire Safety Engineering report has alfiowed the southern
stairway to remain as an open stairway.

12. Clause D1.4 ~ Exit Travel Distances

The exit travel distances within the RHU comply with the DTS provisions of the BCA,
namely maximum 12m travel to a point of choice and maximum 30m to an alternative
exit.

Note: For the purposes of ensuring compliance with the Deemed to satisfy provisions we
have considered the fire wall located at the western end of the building 1o be a horizontal
exit to ensure that travel distances comply from this area.

Egress from the central staff station is permitted to have 20m {o a point of choice and
rmaximum 40m to the alternative exit. Compliance is achieved in the current design.

The nominated exits from the RHU are illustrated below in green arrows:-

(Note: The required swing of internal fire / smoke egress doors are aiso indicated below
in red arrows)

FAProjects\2011\110349 - Goulburn Hespital Rehabilitation RedevelopmentBCA Report\BCA Assessmont Report Rd.doc Page 15 of 31






13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Clause D1.5 - Distances Between Alternative Exits

The distance between alternative exits complies with the DTS provisions of the BCA,
namely maximum 45m between alternative exits having regard to the horizontal exit
located on the western side of the building.

Clause I¥.6 - Dimensions of Exits

The unobstructed height throughout an exit or a path of travel to an exit is not less than 2
metres, except for doorways which may be reduced o not less than 1980mm. in addition,
the unobstructed width of an exit or a path of travel to an exit {public corridors) is not less
than 1 metre on the understanding that patients will ot normaliy be transported in beds.

The minimum widths of doors throughout the patient care areas are to achieve 850mm. A
door schedule should be provided for further review.

Clause D1.10: Discharge of Exits

The discharge of exits to open space cannot incorporate any steps io connect the
discharge point to the adjoining roadway in accordance with the DTS provisions of the
BCA. The site plan indicates that there are generally no steps to the roadway once
occupants discharge from the building.

Clause D2.7: Installations in exits and Paths of Travel

Any and ali electrical meters, distribution boards or ducts, central communications
distribution boards or equipment or electrical motors located within the public corridors
are 10 be smoke sealed and enclosed within non-combustible construction with any
penetrations smoke sealed.

Gas and other fuel services must not be located within a required exit.

Clause D2.10 - Pedestrian Ramps

All pedestrian ramps and walkways (and stairways) need to have a non-slip finish.

Clause D2.13 ~ Treads and Risers

All stairways are to have compliant and consistent tread, riser and going dimensions in
accordance with this clause and the nosing of the stairs must be provided with a non-slip
tread with no gaps between risers exceeding 125mm.

Each stairway is to be provided with a contrast strip to the nosing in accordance with
AS1428.1-2009.

Clause D2.14 - L.andings

In a Class 9a building, the area of any landing of a stairway must be sufficient to move a
stretcher 2m long and 600mm wide at a gradient not more than the gradient of the
stairway, with at least one end of the stretcher on the landing while changing direction
between flights.

Alternatively, the stair must have a change in direction of 180° and the landing & clear
width of not less than 1.6m and a clear length of not less than 2.7m

Further details are to be provided which indicates that the southern stairway achieves
compliance with the above requirements.
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20. Clause D2.15 -~ Thresholds

All external doors are to have a maximum 25mm set in the door threshold with the
exception of the door thresholds that are to facilitate access for people with disabilities —
in which case maximum 3mm step in the door threshold can be accommodated.

Confirmation is to be provided which confirms that the scouthern stairway step down does
not exceed 25mm,

21. Clause D2.16 - Balustrades or other barriers

All balustrades will need to be complant in terms of a minimum of 1m in height above any
fall more than 1m with no gaps greater than 125-mm.

For the external non-fire isclated stairs where the fall exceeds 1-metre the balustrade
must be provided a minimum of 885-mm in height with no gaps greater than 125-mm
and where any landing exceeds 500-mm that the height of balustrading will be a
minimum of T-metre. The plans indicate compliance in this regard.

22, Clause D2.17 - Handrails
Handrails are to be provided afong at least one side of all corridors in the patient care
areas, fixed not less than 50-mm from the wall and continuous where practical. Further
details are to be provided which indicates compliance with the above.

23. Clause D2.20 - Swinging Doors
All required exit doors are to swing in the direction of egress. Smoke and fire doors are
to swing in the direction of egress. The plans indicate compliance in this regard,

24. Clause D2.21 - Operation of Latch

All required exit doors will be fitted with single-handed lever action hardware at a height
of between 900-mm and 1100-mm above the floor level that will be openable without a
key from the direction of egress other than doors.

Any exit doors, internal doors fitted with secured devices and or external gates are to
electronically fail unlocked in fire mode.

25, Clause D2.23 - Signs on Doors

The single swing smoke and fire doors leading into the fire stairs are to have signage
located on the side from which a person seeks egress which states “FIRE SAFETY
DOOR, DO NOT OBSTRUCT, DO NOT KEEP OPEN™,

For double swing smoke doors and fire doors that are part of a horizontal exit or in & path
of travel, signage is required on both sides “FIRE SAFETY DOOR DO NOT OBSTRUCT DO
NOT KEEP OPEN” for self-closing doors and for auto-closing doors “FIRE SAFETY DOOR
DO NOT CBSTRUCT".

26, Clause D3.2 - General Buliding Access Reguirements

The new facility and asscciated parking and access ramps will comply with the DTS
provisions of BCA2011,

This will include the following requirements:~

«  Access for persons with disabilities must be provided, at a minimum, to and within all
areas normally used (] cecupants. This includes to and within all SOUs,
throughout all patient care areas, staff areas and communal areas.

Access need not be provided to:
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A
(a) An area where access would be inappropriate because of the particular
purpose for which the area is used.

(b} An area that would pose a health or safety risk for people with a disability.

(c) Any path of travel providing access only to an area exempted by (a) or (b).

BCA20M Part D3.2 - Ace Buildin D3.3 - Pal f Buildings to be Accessible

= Access for persons with disabiliies is required from the entry at the site boundary,
from all other assessabie buildings on the site and from all nominated accessible
parking spaces on the site.

*  Access must be provided through the principal pedestrian entrance(s) of each buitding
and through not less than 50% of ail pedestrian entrances of the respective buildings
(including the principal pedestrian entry).

in addition, as the buildings are greater than 500m?, any non-accessible entrances
must not be greater than 50m from an accessible entrance.

*  The minimum width of an accessible doorway must have a clear opening width of not
iess than 850mm in accordance with AS1428.1,

Fach of the SOU doors in the Class 9a facilities is to achieve minimum 850mm clear
width - this is on the understand that transportation of beds is not .

= All doorways shali have a minimum luminance contrast of 30% provided between—
(a) door leaf and door jamb;
(b) door leaf and adjacent wall;
(c) architrave and wall;
(d) door leaf and architrave; or

(e) door jamb and adjacent wall.
The minimum width of the area of luminance contrast shall be 50 mm.

» Circulation to doorways that are required to be accessible are to compiy with Section
13 of AB1428.1-20089, including as follows:
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» Al stair nosing’s {internat and external) shall comply with the following diagram, which
achieves a colour contrast luminance of 30% to the background (tread):
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DIMENSIONS (N MILLIMETRES
FIGURE 27{A) A TYPICAL STAIR NOSING PROFILE WITH NOSING STRIF
Stairways and ramps will not need to be served by Tactile Ground Surface Indicators in
accordance with AS1428.41 - BCA2011 includes a concession for Class 9a buildings.

Instead, handrails to stairways and ramps are to have raised tactile warning, in the
form of a domed button 4-~-5mm in height and 10-12mm in diameter, and shall be
provided on the top of each handrail, 150 (+/-10mm, from the end of the handraii.

il AST 1-

AS1428.1 defines an accessible ramp as an inciined surface on a continuous
accessible path of travel between two fandings with a gradient steeper than 1:20 but
not steeper than 1:14,

Landings (complying with AS1428.1 Section 10.8) are to be provided at maximum 9m
intervals for 1:14 ramps and maximum 15m intervals for 1:20 ramps.

Handrails are required both sides of ali accessible ramps.
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Where ramps are constructed with a change in direction, the angle of approach shall
create a 90° angle 1o the line of transition between the ramp surface and the fanding
surface
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Where the intersection is at the property boundary, the stair shall be set back by a
minimum of 800 mm so that the handrails do not protrude into the transverse path of
travel.

Where the intersection is at an internal corridor, the stair shall be set back
Stairs shall have opaque risers.

Stair nosings shall not project beyond the face of the riser and the riser may be vertical
or have a splay backwards up to a maximum 25 mm

Stair nosing profiles shall—

(i) have a sharp intersection;

(i) be rounded up to 5 mm radius; or
(iiiy be chamfered up to 5 mm x 8 mm.

Handrajis,
Handrails shall be instailed along stairways as follows:

o Shall be continuous through the flight and where practicable, around landings
and have no obstruction on or above up to & height of 600mm,

o Shall be constructed to comply with Clause 12 of AS1428.1,

o Installed along both sides of the stairway (giving consideration also to the
required 1m unobstructed width),

o Handrails must not contain any vertical sections,

o Handrails to stairways shall terminate in accordance with the following
diagrams:

_...gA,, e 330 min.

[

BGE to 1000 -

SECTION A-A

* Handrails to ramps shall terminate in accordance with the following diagrams:
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Accessible Fixtures & Fittings:

*  Not less than 1 unisex communal wheelchair accessibie WC is to be provided to comply
with Section 15 of AS1428.1-2008,

* Reguired accessible showers and bathrooms/ensuites are to comply with Section 15 of
AS1428.1-2009

»  Required WCs for people with ambulant disabilities are to comply with Section 16 of
AS1428.1-2008.

» Al fixtures, fittings and door hardware are to comply with Section 13.5 & Section 14 of
AS1428.1-2009.

Reguired Sanitary Facilities
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» BCAZ20H Part F requires sanitary facilities with the Class 9a facilities as follows:-

(a) Facilities for Staff:-
Toilet facilities for staff are to be provided in accordance with the following:-

User Group

‘Class 2a

Male
‘empioyees

Female
‘employees
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At each bank of communal and staff toilets, where there is one or more tollets in addition
to an accessible unisex WC at that bank of toilets, a sanitary compartment suitable for a
person with an ambulant disability in accordance with AS 1428.1 must be provided for use
by males and females.

In this instance the proposed staff BOH will require:

(a) a further wheelchair accessible unisex WC {i.e. in addition to the proposed communal
wheelchair accessible WC), and
(b)) ambulant accessible WCs for both male and female.

On account of the likely ‘abled-bodied’ staff to be employed in the respective facilities, it is
congidered that the need for a further accessible WC for staff use and or the need for
facilities for ambulant staff is unlikely and hence we recommend an alternative solution will
bea required from a suitably qualified and experienced access consultant.

(b) Facilities for Patients:

Every SOU ensuite that is nominated to be accessible for people with disabilities is to be
compliant with AS1428.1-2009.

Continuous Accessible Paths of Trave!

Accessways / corridors within the buildings must be constructed in accordance with the
following:

o Passing spaces compiying with the foliowing diagram at 20m intervals on those
parts of the accessway / corridor, where a direct line of sight is not available:

“MJMWME‘M 4G9

w TN

... 2000 |

DIMENSIONS IN RILUMETRES

FIGURE 3 EXAMPLES FOR PASSING SPACE FOR WHEELCHAIRS

The design compiies in this regard.

o Turning spaces provided (in accordance with the following diagram) within 2m of
the end of an accessway where it is not possible to continue traveling along the
accessway, and at maximum 20m intervals along the accessways.

As the corridors are approximately 2m wide, this satisfies the requirements of this
clause.
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*  The carpet pile height or pile thickness shall not exceed 1imm and the carpet backing
thickrness shall not exceed 4mm. Note: combined thickness of 15mm respectively,

= Signage to identify any ambulant or accessible sanitary facility which is located on the door
of the facility,
= Where a pedestrian entrance is not accessibie, then directional signage incorporating the

international symbol of access or deafness must be provided to direct a person to the
location of the nearest accessible pedestrian entrance.

=  On an accessway where there is no rail, handrail or transom provided to glazed walls and
doors which may be mistaken as an opening must be clearly line marked in accordance
with the following:

o Must be ciearly marked for the full width of the glazed element,

o Must be a solid and non transparent contrasting line,

o The contrasting line must have a minimum of 30% luminance contrast when
viewed against the floor surface or surfaces within 2m of the glazing of the
opposite side.

o Must be not less than 75mm in width,

o The lower edge of the contrasting line must be located between 900mm and
100Cmm above the finished floor ievel

: ble Parking S .

A minimum of 1 disabled carparking space must be provided for every 100 car parking spaces or
part thereof for the non-outpatient areas.

A minimum of 1 disabled carparking space must be provided for every 50 car parking spaces or
part thereof for the outpatient areas.

The required accessible parking spaces are required to comply with AS2890.6 and the following:
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FIGURE 22 EXAMPLE OF AN ANGLE PARKING SPACE WITH SHARED AREA
ON ONE SIBE ONLY-—-DIMENSIONS FOR AUSTRALIA ORLY"

27.Clause D3.6 - Identification of Accessible Facllities, Services and Features

Braiftle and tactite signage must be instailed to indicate the disabled toilet and [ift as per

Specification C3.6.

BCA SecTi = VICES AND E

28. Fire Safety Reqguirements

MENT

The following essential fire safety measures are to be implemented to and within the
propased new building to comply with BCA and relevant Standards as nominated:

Statutory Fire Safety Measure

Design/Installation Standard

Alarm Signalling Equiprment

AS1870.3 - 2004

Automatic Fail Safe Devices

BCA Clause D2.21

Automatic Fire Detection & Alarm
System

BCA Spec. E2.2a & AS1670.1 - 2004,

Automatic Suppression system
(Drenchers)

if used to protect openings expuosed te ohe
another in different fire compartments.

AS2118.2

Emergency Lighting

BCA Ciause E4.4 & AS 2293.1 - 2005

EWIS

BCA Clause E4.9 & AS1670.4 - 2004 & AS 4428.4
- 2004
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Statutory Fire Safety Measure

Design/Instaitation Standard

Emergency Evacuation Plan

1 As 3748 - 2002

Exit Sighs

BCA Clauses E4.5, £E4.6 & E4.8 and AS 22931 -
2005

Fire Blankets

AS 3504 - 1995 & AS 2444 - 2001

Fire Dampers

BCA Clause C3.15, AS 1668.1 - 1998 & AS 16821
& 2 -19880

Fire Doors

BCA Clause C2.12, G213, C3.2, C3.4, C3.5, C3.6
&C3.7, C3.8, C3.11 and AS 1905.1 - 2005

Fire Hose Reels

BCA Clause E1.4 & AS 2441 - 2005

Fire Hydrant Systems

Clause E1.3 & AS 24191 - 2005

Fire Seals

BCA Cilause C3.18, AS1530.4 & AS4072.1 - 2005

Lightweight Construction

BCA Clause C1.8 & AS1530.3 - 1899

Mechanical Air Handling Systems
(automatic shutdown)

BCA Clause E2.2, AS/NZS 1668.1 ~ 1998 & AS
1668.2 ~ 1991

Paths of Travel

ERP & A Regulation Clause 186

Portable Fire Extinguishers

BCA Clause E1.6 & AS 2444 - 2001

Smoke Dampers

AS/NZS 1668.1 - 1998

Smoke Doors

BCA Spec. C3.4 & C25

Warning & Operational signs

Section 183 of the EP & A Regulations 2000, AS
1805.1 ~ 2005, BCA Clause 3.6, D2.23, E3.3

29, Clause E1.3 - Fire Hydrants

Internal or external fire hydrants are to be provided to comply with AS 2419.1 - 2005.

The hydrant booster assembly if required and any external fire hydrants are required to
be located greater than 10 metres from an external wail of the building, or affixed to the
external wall and protected by a radiant heat shield that has an FRL. of 90/90/90 located
2 metres ejther side and 3 metres above the outlets.

Any gas meter must be located a minimum of 10-metres from the hydrant booster outlet.

30. Clause E1.4 - Hose RAeels

Fire hose reels are to be provided to comply with AS 2441 - 20085,

Note: As Fire Hose Reels are not permitted to pass through Fire doors, consideration wilt
need to be given to the installation of additional FHR located in the bedstore, Comm’s
room and piant room located on the under croft level.

31. Clause E1.6 - Portable Fire Extinguishers

Portable fire extinguishers are to be installed in acgcordance with clause E1.6 and AS
2444, This includes the provision of type E fire extinguishers to nurse and staff stations.
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32. Clause E2.2 - Smoke Hazard Management
Any air-handling system (other than non-ducted systems with a capacity not more than
1000 fitres/second) must shut down automatically on the activation of smoke detectors

installed as per Specification E2.2a.

AS 168701 -~ 2004 smoke detection and alarm must be provided throughout the new
works,

33. Clause E4.2 - Emergency Lighting

Emergency Lighting is required throughout the new works in accordance with AS 2293 .1
-2008,

34. Clause E4.5 - Exit Signs

Exit signs are to be installed throughout the new works in accordance with AS 22831 -
2005,

35, Clause E4.6 - Directional Exit Signs

Directional exit signs are to be installed throughout the new works where the exits are
not readily apparent to occupants in accordance with AS 2293.1 -2005.

36. Clause E4.9 - Sound System and Intercom System for Emergency Purposes
(EWIS)

A sound system and intercom system for emergency purposes must be provided
throughout the new works as per AS 1670.4 - 2004.

BCA SECTION F - HEALTH & AMENITY

37.Clause F1.7 - Waterproofing of Wet Areas
Wet areas in the building are required to comply with AS 3740,
38. Clause F1.9 - Damp-Proofing

The buiiding design is to make necessary provision to ensure moisture from the ground is
prevented from reaching the lowest floor timbers and walls above the lowest floor joists.

The required damp proof course is to comply with AS/NZS52804 or include impervious
termite shields in accordance with AS3660.1.

39. Clause F1.12 - Sub-Floor Ventilation
Sub floor ventilation 1o the building is to be compliant with clause F1L.12 of the BCA
including suitable means of permanent cross flow ventilation and minimum 400mm
vertical clearance between the ground surface and the underside of the floor structure.

40. Clause F2.3- Facilities in a Class 9a Building

The Class 9a facility is required to have:
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»  Kitchen facilities

= Laundry facilities

»  One island-type plunge bath

Confirmation is to be provided which confirms whether the ADL Bathroom will contain an
island type plunge bath.

41. Clause F2.4- Facilities for People with Disabllities

Accessible WC Is to be designed in accordance with the requirements of AS 14281 -
2009.

42. Clause F2.5 - Construction of Sanitary Compartments
The door to fully enclosed sanitary facilities must open outwards, slide or be readily
removable from the cutside unless there is a clear space of 1.2 metres measured in
accordance with figure F2.5.
43. Clause F2.8 -~ Waste Management
In class 9a areas at least one slop hopper or other device must be provided on any
storey containing ward areas or bedrooms and must have a flushing apparatus, tap and
grating.
The waste management device is to be located within the dirty utility or similar location.
44. Clause F3.1 - Height of Rooms
The floor to ceiling heights in the new works must be 2.4-meftres throughout.
45, Clause F4.1 - Provision of Natural Light
Natural light is required to be provided to all ward bedrooms as per clause F4.2.

This has been achieved and is therefore compliant with BCA.

46, Clause F4.4 - Artificial Lighting
Artificial lighting to the new works is required in accordance with AS 1680.0 2009.

q47.Clause F4.5 - Ventilation of Rooms

The new works are to be provided with either natural ventilation achieving 5% of the floor
area of the room served or where naturai ventilation is not provided, AS 1668.2 - 199t
mechanical ventiiation is to be provided. Confirmation is required from the Mechanical
Consultant.

SECTION J - ENERGY EFFICIENGY
The new works are subject to the requirements of Part J1 for Building Fabric, Part J2 for
giazing where new external glazing is installed, Part J3 for building sealing including clause

J3.3 {External Doors and Windows), clause J3.5 (Exhaust Fans), clause J3.6 (Construction
of Roofs, Walls and Floors) and clause J3.7 (Evaporative Coolers).
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Furthermore, the proposed new works are required to comply with ciause J5.2 (Air
Conditioning and Ventilating Systems), clause J5.3 (Time Switch), clause J5.4 (Heating and
Cooling Systems), and clause J5.5 (Ancillary Exhaust Systems)for any new air-conditioning
systems.

New artificial fighting is required to comply with Part J6 (Artificial lighting and power).

It addition, any new hot water supply is required to be installed in accordance with clause
J7.2 (Hot Water Supply}. Compliance with clauses J8.2 (Access for Maintenance) and J8.3
(Facilities for Energy Monitoring) is required.

Details and design certification are required to be provided from the Architect, Mechanical,
Electrical, and MHydraulic Consultants prior to the issue of the Crown Certification.

C. CONCLUSION

This report containg a BOA assessment of the referenced architectural documentation for the
proposed Sub-Acute bed RHU, against the Deemed-to-Satisfy provisions of the Building
Code of Australia 2011 (BCA).

Arising from our prefiminary assessment we are satisfied that the project design can generally
comply the DTS provisions of the BCA2011 subject to compliance with the above
requirements.

The following design issues are to be addressed by means of an alternative solution report in
conjunction with the preceding BCA assessment report and certification:-

fire Safety Engineer

1. Exposure between the relocated demountable buiiding and the building to the north
as identified in section 1.2 of this report. Compieted

Exposure between the proposed RHU and the existing hospital building. Completed

Construction of Fire Wall which is not continuous from the lowest storey through the
roof of the upper floor level. Completed

4, Fire rated construction of southern egress stairway. Completed.

Access consultant
1. General departures from AS1428.1-2008 to staff areas
2. Omission of accessible WC and ambulant WC fagcilities for staff
itional infor, iON I iy
1. Proposed spandrel separation between storeys.

2. Copy of the door schedule to determine the unobstructed width of all proposed
doors.

3. Details are to be provided which indicates that the southern stairway step down does
not exceed 25mm.

4. Provision of FHR in some rooms separated by Fire Walls in the under croft area.
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